
BUCKLEY CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
Tuesday, October 28, 2025, at 6:00 P.M. 
Multi-Purpose Center, 811 Main Street 
Next Ordinance #10-25, Next Resolution #25-06, Next Agenda Bill #25-051 
Or Via Zoom: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83366597529?pwd=N2hMTmh5eEZ4TGpJd2dpbFp0cnkvdz09 
Call-in Number: 253-215-8782 
Meeting ID: 833 6659 7529    Meeting Passcode: 863441 

A. CALL TO ORDER
1. Pledge of Allegiance
2. Roll call
3. Agenda Modifications
4. Announcements, Appointments and Presentations

B. PUBLIC COMMENTS - Time Limit of Three Minutes (Citizens wishing to speak are Encouraged to sign
up at City Hall by Wednesday prior to the Council Meeting)

C. COMMITTEE REPORTS
1. Mayor’s Report Burkett 
2. Parks & Community Services Anderson 
3. Development Services, Utilities & Transportation Arsanto 
4. Admin/Finance/Public Safety Smith 
5. Citizens Advisory Commission Anderson 
6. Planning Commission Arsanto 

D. CONSENT AGENDA
a. Approve Minutes of May 6, 2025, City Council Study Session

E. REGULAR AGENDA

1. NEW BUSINESS
a. System Access and Use Agreement (SAA) Between Pierce County and City of Buckley

F. STAFF REPORTS
1. Youth Center Annual Report
2. Quarterly Public Safety Update
3. City Administrator Update

G. PUBLIC COMMENTS - Time Limit of Three Minutes

H. COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS & GOOD OF THE ORDER

I. ADJOURNMENT

City Council Agenda Packet - October 28, 2025 1



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

B. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

City Council Agenda Packet - October 28, 2025
 

2



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

C. COMMITTEE REPORTS 

City Council Agenda Packet - October 28, 2025
 

3



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

D. CONSENT AGENDA 

City Council Agenda Packet - October 28, 2025
 

4



 

City Council Study Session – May 6, 2025 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
STUDY SESSION 

May 6, 2025 
 
ATTENDEES: Council members Smith, Green, Arsanto, Burbank, Anderson and Bergerson.  
 
Also, in attendance were: Mayor Burkett, City Administrator Brunell, Finance Director Hines, Fire Chief 
Skogen, Public Services Director Banks, Senior Planner Farnsworth, Police Records Clerk Burkett, and 
Deputy Clerk Clark.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Smith called the regularly scheduled meeting to order at 6:00 PM.  
 
Finance Software Update: 
Finance Director Hines through research shared with Council that the software systems Springbrook and 
Tyler were the top two choices and staff agreed because of the ease and functionality that they offered.   
If Council would like, this can be brought to the next Council meeting to be approved. 
 
Fire Department Update: 
Fire Chief Skogen explained to Council that things have changed drastically in the last few years due to 
growth and call volumes.  If Council were to approve for shift work, it can reduce call volumes by three 
minutes, which is substantial.  Ideally and a goal to work for would be 3 full-time employees per shift.  
That would be enough to get two units out the door.   
 
City Administrator Brunell added that we already have a higher call volume than neighboring East Pierce 
areas and they have four or five full-time firefighters each shift.   
 
Council discussed options the City could have to obtain more full-time firefighters.  
 
Comp Plan Amendment: 
Senior Planner Farnsworth explained to Council on why these edits have come forward for the 
Comprehensive Plan and we are currently in the process of doing this to incorporate comments from the 
Department of Commerce.   
 
The edits to the Comprehensive Plan include the following 

1. Land use and planning tools to reduce and mitigate wildfire risk. 
2. Accommodating growth for emergency housing. 
3. Identifying areas that have a high risk of residential displacement.  
4. Including a direct reference to the Racially Disparate Impact report in the Housing 

Element. (Report is attached in the packets) 
 

Next steps will be to have a Public Hearing with City Council on May 27th and City Council adoption of the 
Comprehensive Plan Amendment on July 8th. 
 
Logo Redesign: 
Mayor Burkett spoke on the new logo design and has been working with a local graphic designer to explore 
a refreshed City logo.  The revised logo is a simplified and more modern design that reflects Buckley today.   
Some key elements include adding the White River, a Sasquatch, and the elk head in the mountain.   
 
City Administrator Brunell will look into the total cost for changing to the new logo.  
 

City Council Agenda Packet - October 28, 2025
 

5



 

City Council Study Session – May 6, 2025 
 

The Council discussed the options, and all agreed with option “B”.  Council member Anderson would like 
to see the maroon and gold stay, to represent White River High School colors.  
 
Speed Limit Review:  
Mayor Burkett has requested that we study potential speed limit reductions on key roads leading into 
downtown Buckley.  This has been brought up with the conflicts on “A” and Main St. Mayor Burkett 
explained to Council why this would be a wise idea.   
Streets currently under consideration for a lower speed limit include: 
 

· Main St. from Spruce St. to SR 410 
· Spruce St. from Main St. to Jefferson Ave. 
· Jefferson Ave. from SR 410 to A St. 
· Park Ave. from SR 410 to N A St. 
· A St. from Park Ave. to Spiketon Rd.  

 
Council discussed options and gave opinions on this topic and to keep the roads safe.  Council would like 
to get an estimate for speed bumps and signage to slow people down.  Public Services Director Banks was 
there to answer Councils questions and concerns.   
 
With nothing further, the Study Session was adjourned at 7:37 PM. 
 

 

             
City Administrator                                                                                   Mayor 

 

 

Prepared by: Jessica Clark, Deputy City Clerk  

 

City Council Agenda Packet - October 28, 2025
 

6



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

D. REGULAR AGENDA 

City Council Agenda Packet - October 28, 2025
 

7



City Council Agenda Packet - October 28, 2025
 

8



City Council Agenda Packet - October 28, 2025
 

9



City Council Agenda Packet - October 28, 2025
 

10



City Council Agenda Packet - October 28, 2025
 

11



City Council Agenda Packet - October 28, 2025
 

12



City Council Agenda Packet - October 28, 2025
 

13



City Council Agenda Packet - October 28, 2025
 

14



City Council Agenda Packet - October 28, 2025
 

15



City Council Agenda Packet - October 28, 2025
 

16



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

E. STAFF REPORTS 

City Council Agenda Packet - October 28, 2025
 

17



 

Buckley Youth Center  
Annual Report                  October 2025 
 
Mission Statement  
The mission of the Buckley Youth Center (BYC) is to provide a place where all youth are welcome 
to be seen, heard, involved, and grow through connection to their peers, community and with 
caring adults.  
 
What we do:  
The Youth Center continues to offer a free, safe, and welcoming space for teens after school, 
with daily drop-in hours until 6 p.m. on school days. The program provides a consistent place for 
youth to connect, play games, do art, and participate in activities under staff supervision, all 
within a welcoming open-door environment. A hot filling snack is served daily, ensuring every 
participant has access to nutritious food after school. Once a month, the center hosts a special 
Late Night Friday event featuring extended hours and themed activities that draw strong 
attendance. On non-school weekdays the center is open for afternoon to early evening hours to 
provide connection and support to our youth. Our program focuses on providing free engaging 
programing, substance use prevention, and increasing access to a range of vital services.  

Attendance and Participation 

• Total Visits: 
o January to September 2025: 6728 
o 2024-2025 school year: 7473 
o 2025 school year so far: 1463 (as of 10/10/2025) 

• Unique Youth Served: 
o January to September 2025: 540 
o 2024-2025 school year: 496 
o 2025 school year so far: 243 (as of 10/10/2025) 

• City vs. County Residency: 
This data helps us continue receiving direct funding support from Pierce County. During 
the 2023–2025 grant cycle, we were awarded $116,000 through the Youth Violence 
Prevention program. 

o 44% are City of Buckley Residents 
o 56% Unincorporated Pierce County 

• Daily Averages: 
o Average daily for 2024-25 School Year: 40.17 a day 
o Summer 2025:19.75  

• Who Are the Participants?  
o 75% are Middle School Aged 
o 40% Female 59% Male 1% Non-Binary/Prefer not to answer 

City Council Agenda Packet - October 28, 2025
 

18



o 176 youth self-reported they received free or reduced school lunch 

Staffing and Support 

• Two permanent part-time staff manage daily operations. (one - 30hr per week & one - 
18hr per week). 

• 15 hours per week of additional part-time, non-permanent, grant-funded staff help 
maintain safe adult-to-youth ratios. 

• One mental health master’s intern from Satya Counseling provides support and 
resources for youth. 

• Three long-term, dedicated weekly volunteers assist with programs and mentorship. 
• Supervised by the Parks and Recreation Director. 

Partnerships 

The Youth Center benefits from and works with a wide range of partners to help support our 
mission and improve access to information, nutrition, and opportunities.   

• Buckley Library- Onsite programing and reading support. 
• Dave Morrel, District 1 County Councilmember – Direct allocations that bring more 

funding to help support increased needs in staff hours do to high volume of participants. 
• Good Roots NW – Budgeted allocation for food at the drop-in program.  
• Local Business – Wallys, Scoops, & Big Foot donating to provide reward give-a-ways.  
• Mother 2 Many – Weekly donations of chicken and other snack supplies.  
• Pierce County Environmental Educators – Environmental education and gardening 

programing . 
• Pierce County Health Department – Funding for specialty prevention programs and 

staffing costs.  
• Rebecca’s Odd Fellows – Donate food and other supplies on a regular basis to support 

operations.  
• Satya Counseling & Wellness – Master’s Level Counseling Intern onsite for group 

programing weekly.  
• Wear It For Barrett - Helmet promotion, donations and education.  

Funding and Resources Supports 

• Youth Violence Prevention 
o 2023-2025 Cycle we received $116,000 in allocations both directly through the 

grant program and through additional allocations from the county council.  
• Tacoma Pierce County Health Department  

o Small grant programs ranging from $5,000 to $15,000 to support programming 
and substance use reduction and prevention programs.  

• White River Hometown Grants 
o Support for the late-night program & Friendsgiving.  

City Council Agenda Packet - October 28, 2025
 

19



• Donations 
o We receive donations on a very regular basis from many partners to help keep 

our cupboards full and youth fed. Estimated value of food donations in 2025 
currently exceeds $5,000.  

Looking Ahead: Upcoming Programs & Goals 

• Goals and Strategic Priorities 
o Sustain high daily attendance. 
o Continuing partnerships for mental health and substance reduction programs. 
o Provide ongoing staff training to expand support and skills. 
o Diversify external funding streams. 
o Strengthening partnerships to create meaningful and engaging programming. 
o Maintain safe staffing ratios. 
o Stay open during high-risk hours. 
o Keep the surrounding park space teen-welcoming and safe. 

• Planned Special Programs: 
o TPCHD Grant: Training for staff on Not On Tabacco Youth Cessation Facilitator 

Training. For weekly programing to support those youth struggling with 
substance use.  

o Friendsgiving: Annual thanksgiving dinner for the youth with all the fixings. 
Supported by our partners and the community. 

o Monthly Teen Late Nights: October – Harvest Party. 
o Party at the Park: Last day of school celebration.  

• Facility: 
o Simple in-house fix to the rafters air flow improved the functionality of the HVAC 

system.  
o Stove was replaced in fall of 2024 
o Need for additional deep freezer 
o Flooring nearing end of life.   

Summary & Closing:  

The Buckley Youth Center continues to be a welcoming and important place for young people in 
our community. Every day we see the positive impact of providing a safe space where teens can 
relax, connect, and find support. The center’s growth and success are a reflection of the care 
and commitment shared by our staff, volunteers, and community partners who all play a role in 
helping youth feel valued and supported. The program was built on a strong community 
foundation and a shared vision for recreation services that meet the unique needs of teens. 
That vision and support have shaped the Youth Center into what it is today. 

With the continued support from City of Buckley leaders, Pierce County, the Tacoma-Pierce 
County Health Department, local businesses, and many community members, we can provide 

City Council Agenda Packet - October 28, 2025
 

20



meaningful programs that promote health, connection, and opportunity. Together, we are 
building a stronger foundation for our youth and for the future of Buckley. 

As we look ahead, we remain committed to keeping the Youth Center a free and accessible 
place for all youth in the Buckley and White River Community. 

City Council Agenda Packet - October 28, 2025
 

21



1  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3rd Quarter 2025 Public Safety Report 
 
 
 
 
 

Buckley Police Department 

July - September 2025 
 

 
CITY OF BUCKLEY | 146 S Cedar St., Buckley, WA 98321 

 
 

2025 

City Council Agenda Packet - October 28, 2025
 

22



2 BUCKLEY POLICE| Public Safety Report— 3rd Quarter 2025  

Buckley Police Department July - Sept. 2025 
Public Safety Report 

 
PATROL ACTIVITY 

July 2025 –  
07/02/2025, 5:16 PM Warrant Arrest 500 Block of Tanner Ave - Officers responded to a verbal dispute between a 67-year-old 
female and a 35-year-old female. Before arrival, they learned the 35-year-old had an active DOC warrant out of Arizona and an 
Attempted Assault 2nd Degree warrant out of Puyallup. She was arrested and booked into Pierce County Jail. 
 
07/03/2025, 2:01 AM Driving While License Suspended State Route 410 E/ Mundy Loss Rd A vehicle was stopped for speeding. 
The 35-year-old female driver was found to be suspended in the 3rd Degree. She was issued a criminal citation for DWLS. 
 
07/03/2025, 11:48 PM Driving While License Suspended Mason Ave/ Naches St - A license plate check showed the registered 
owner had a suspended license in the 2nd Degree. The officer stopped the vehicle and confirmed the 47-year-old female driver 
was the registered owner. The driver was cited criminally for Driving While License Suspended (DWLS). 
 
07/05/2025, 1:25 PM DUI Arrest Park Ave/ Edith St - An off-duty officer reported a vehicle swerving in Enumclaw, possibly 
headed towards Buckley. A Buckley Officer located the vehicle on Park Avenue in Buckley. The officer observed the vehicle 
swerving and crossing into the oncoming lane of travel. The officer conducted a traffic stop and observed DUI indicators. The 
driver was placed under arrest for DUI, and the results of the breath test showed 0.222 BAC. 
 
07/06/2025, 11:42 AM Driving While License Suspended 28300 block of 112th Street - An officer pulled over a vehicle for speeding, 
going 54 MPH in a posted 35 MPH zone. The 45-year-old male driver had a suspended license and was issued a criminal citation. 
 
07/10/2025, 12:18 AM DUI Arrest, Resisting Arrest, and Obstructing N River Ave/ Main Street - While on patrol, an officer saw a 
Nissan SUV swerving and committing multiple traffic violations. The officer attempted a traffic stop, but the 65-year-old male driver 
sped up before pulling into a driveway in the 200 block of C Street. Upon contact, the officer observed signs of impairment. The 
driver refused to stay in the vehicle or provide ID. After being told he was under arrest, the driver continued to resist commands. 
He was taken into custody and charged with DUI, resisting arrest, and obstructing. His breath test result was 0.155. 
 
07/11/2025, 9:58 PM Driving While License Suspended and Ignition Interlock Violation 29300 block of State Route 410 - While on 
patrol, an officer stopped a 45-year-old male driver for speeding, 50 MPH in a posted 35 MPH zone. The officer learned the driver 
had a suspended license and was required to use an ignition interlock device, which was not installed in the vehicle. The driver was 
arrested for Driving While License Suspended (DWLS) and an ignition interlock violation. 
 
07/11/2025, 9:33 PM DUI Arrest 112th St E/ Mundy Loss Rd - While on patrol, an officer observed a vehicle swerving and speeding, 
73 MPH in a posted 35 MPH zone. The officer conducted a traffic stop and contacted the 16-year-old male driver. Signs of drug 
impairment were observed, and the driver was placed under arrest. A DUI blood warrant was approved for a blood draw. 
 
07/12/2025, 3:22 PM Warrant Arrest Main Street/ State Route 410 - While on patrol, an officer conducted a 
routine license plate check on a Honda Accord and found that the 23-year-old male registered owner had a suspended license. The 
officer stopped the vehicle and discovered the registered owner was not driving, but was seated in the passenger seat. The 23-year- 
old had an outstanding warrant for failing to appear in court on a separate criminal offense. Bonney Lake PD took custody of him, 
and he was booked into jail. 
 
07/27/2025, 4:35 AM Reckless Motorcycle 25900 BLK SR410 - An officer conducting traffic enforcement on SR410 clocked a 
motorcycle at well over 100MPH. The officer activated his emergency lights and the motorcycle continued west on SR410 into 
Bonney Lake. A minute and a half later Bonney Lake officers observed the same motorcycle speeding through their city at triple 
digits. Washington State Patrol was advised of its last know location on Elih Hill. 

City Council Agenda Packet - October 28, 2025
 

23



3 BUCKLEY POLICE| Public Safety Report— 3rd Quarter 2025  

Buckley Police Department July - Sept 2025 
Public Safety Report 
PATROL ACTIVITY Cont. 

August 2025 :  
08/05/2025, 11:25 PM DUI Arrest SR 410 E / White River Bridge - An officer saw a pickup truck swerving and driving under the 
speed limit and conducted a traffic stop. The 34-year-old driver showed signs of impairment, and alcohol was seen in the vehicle. 
Officers suspected drug use. The driver was arrested for DUI. Upon search incident to arrest, officers located a baggie containing 
suspected cocaine, which the driver admitted to. Later, a field test confirmed the substance was cocaine. A blood warrant for DUI 
was granted and served. 
 
08/06/2025, 11:15 PM DUI Arrest SR 410 E / Hinkleman Ext Rd - An officer saw a vehicle speeding and conducted a traffic stop. 
The 34-year-old female driver of a Tesla had the odor of intoxicants. A DUI investigation determined she was driving while 
impaired. She was arrested for DUI. BAC: .145. 
 
08/07/2025, 8:13 PM DUI and Driving While License Suspended 28100 blk State Route 410 - An officer stopped a green SUV for 
speeding. The 30-year-old male driver admitted he did not have a valid license. The officer confirmed the driver had a suspended 
driver’s license. The officer smelled the odor of intoxicants and conducted a DUI investigation. The driver was arrested for DUI and 
DWLS. BAC: .132. 
 
08/09/2025, 1:11 AM DUI and Minor in Possession Park Ave / State Route 410 - An officer stopped a silver sedan for speeding. 
The 20-year-old male driver had a vodka bottle on the floorboard and showed signs of impairment. He was arrested for DUI and 
minor in possession of alcohol. BAC: .178. 
 
08/09/2025, 2:38 AM Eluding, DUI, Collision, and Possession of a Firearm 29400 blk of 112th St E - While on patrol, an officer 
saw a red Volkswagen Jetta speeding 76 MPH in a 35 MPH zone. The 18-year-old male driver accelerated. When the officer caught 
up to the vehicle and activated their lights and sirens, the driver attempted to flee at a high rate of speed. The vehicle left the 
roadway on a curve, drove through grass, and hit a power pole. The driver was arrested for DUI and eluding. BAC: .170. During the 
investigation, officers learned about a firearm in the vehicle. A search warrant for the vehicle led to the seizure of an unregistered 
firearm. He was booked into Pierce County Jail. 

 

September 2024: 
09/01/2025 – 5:57 PM Traffic Arrest 29200 BLK of SR 410 E - While on patrol, an officer observed a vehicle driving without a front 
or rear license plate. The officer conducted a routine traffic stop on the vehicle. Upon running the vehicle's information, the officer 
discovered it was unlicensed and had a canceled title. The officer issued the driver a criminal citation for operating a vehicle 
without a valid title. 
 
09/06/2025 – 1:32 AM Pursuit / Felony Eluding / Reckless Endangerment / Loaded Pistol in Vehicle Without CPL SR 410 E / 
Mundy Loss Rd E - While on patrol, an officer observed a vehicle driving without a front or rear license plate. The officer conducted 
a routine traffic stop. As the officer approached the vehicle, the driver put the vehicle in drive and fled the stop at an excessive 
speed. The officer pursued the fleeing vehicle, reaching speeds of 90–100 mph. The pursuit ended shortly after the vehicle crashed 
at 234th Ave E and SR 410 E. After the suspect was taken into custody, they admitted to discarding a loaded firearm after the 
crash. A juvenile was also inside the vehicle and had asked the driver to stop, but the driver did not comply. The suspect was 
booked into Pierce County Jail for felony eluding, reckless endangerment, and carrying a loaded pistol in a vehicle without a CPL. 
 
09/15/2025 – 9:49 PM DUI Arrest 29300 BLK of SR 410 E - While on patrol, an officer conducted a traffic stop on a speeding 
vehicle. Upon contacting the driver, the officer smelled a strong odor of marijuana coming from the vehicle. Voluntary field 
sobriety tests were conducted, and the officer determined there was probable cause for DUI (Marijuana). The driver was arrested, 
and a warrant for a blood draw was completed. 
 
09/25/2025 – 12:03 AM DUI Arrest 28500 BLK of SR 410 E - While on patrol, an officer stopped a vehicle for driving 50 mph in a 
posted 35 mph zone. Upon contacting the driver, the officer detected a strong odor of marijuana coming from the vehicle. During 
voluntary field sobriety tests, the driver blew a 0.257 on the preliminary breath test. The officer determined there was probable 
cause to arrest the driver for DUI. At the station, the driver later blew a 0.305. 
 

City Council Agenda Packet - October 28, 2025
 

24



4 BUCKLEY POLICE| Public Safety Report— 3rd Quarter 2025  

09/07/2025 – 1:50 AM Traffic Arrest 29200 BLK of SR 410 E - While on patrol, an officer conducted a routine license plate check 
on a vehicle and discovered that the registered owner had a suspended/revoked driver’s license. The officer made a traffic stop 
and determined that the driver was the registered owner. The officer issued the driver a criminal citation for driving with a 
suspended/revoked license in the 3rd degree. 

City Council Agenda Packet - October 28, 2025
 

25



5 BUCKLEY POLICE| Public Safety Report— 3rd Quarter 2025  

 By the Numbers  
 
 
 

 
TRAFFIC ENFORCEMENT / CALLS FOR SERVICE 3RD QUARTER 2024 / 2025 

 
Traffic Stops 

 
616 / 496 

 
DUI’s 

 
6 / 15 

 
Traffic Complaints / Motor Vehicle Collisions 

 
59/32 - 52/29 

 
Traffic Misdemeanor Arrests 

 
30 / 37 

 
Infractions Issued 

 
248 / 120 

 
Felony Arrests 

 
7 / 2 

 
Misdemeanor Arrests 

 
10 / 9 

 
Patrol Follow Ups 

 
100 / 71 

 
Officer Initiated Contacts / *August Contacts unavailable from SS911 

 
1036 / 736 * 

 
CAD Calls for Service / * CAD calls for August unavailable from SS911 

 
2031 / 1268 * 

 
Formal Reports Taken 

 
117 / 114 

 

City Council Agenda Packet - October 28, 2025
 

26


	City Council Agenda - 10.28.2025
	B. PUBLIC COMMENTS
	C. COMMITTEE REPORTS
	D. CONSENT AGENDA
	City Council Study Session Minutes 05-06-2025 (Draft)
	E. REGULAR AGENDA
	Main Agenda Item 1 (System Access and Use Agreement with Pierce County)
	F. STAFF REPORTS
	BYC Oct 2025 Report
	Buckley Youth Center
	Annual Report                  October 2025
	Attendance and Participation
	Partnerships
	The Youth Center benefits from and works with a wide range of partners to help support our mission and improve access to information, nutrition, and opportunities.
	Funding and Resources Supports
	Looking Ahead: Upcoming Programs & Goals
	 Goals and Strategic Priorities


	Public Safety Report - 3rd Quarter 2025
	PATROL ACTIVITY
	PATROL ACTIVITY Cont.




